

Family Security Friendly Society (Distribution of Moneys) Act 1991

Reprinted as in force on 1 October 1999

Reprint No. 2B^{*}

This reprint is prepared by the Office of the Queensland Parliamentary Counsel Warning—This reprint is not an authorised copy

NOTE—This is the last reprint before repeal. Repealed by 2012 Act No. 25 s 194

* Minor differences in presentation between this reprint and another reprint with the same number are due to the conversion to new styles. At the same time, footnotes that merely cite a cross-reference to this legislation, or other legislation, were omitted (see the *Acts Interpretation Act 1954*, section 14(7)).

Information about this reprint

This Act is reprinted as at 1 October 1999. The reprint shows the law as amended by all amendments that commenced on or before that day (Reprints Act 1992 s 5(c)).

The reprint includes a reference to the law by which each amendment was made—see list of legislation and list of annotations in endnotes. Also see list of legislation for any uncommenced amendments.

Minor editorial changes allowed under the provisions of the Reprints Act 1992 have also been made to use aspects of format and printing style consistent with current drafting practice (s 35).

This page is specific to this reprint. See previous reprints for information about earlier changes made under the Reprints Act 1992. A table of reprints is included in the endnotes.

Also see endnotes for information about-

- when provisions commenced
- editorial changes made in earlier reprints.

Dates shown on reprints

Reprints dated at last amendment All reprints produced on or after 1 July 2002, hard copy and electronic, are dated as at the last date of amendment. Previously reprints were dated as at the date of publication. If a hard copy reprint is dated earlier than an electronic version published before 1 July 2002, it means the legislation was not further amended and the reprint date is the commencement of the last amendment.

If the date of a hard copy reprint is the same as the date shown for an electronic version previously published, it merely means that the electronic version was published before the hard copy version. Also, any revised edition of the previously published electronic version will have the same date as that version.

Replacement reprint date If the date of a hard copy reprint is the same as the date shown on another hard copy reprint it means that one is the replacement of the other.



Queensland

Family Security Friendly Society (Distribution of Moneys) Act 1991

Contents

| | | Page |
|----|--|------|
| 1 | Short title | 3 |
| 2 | Definitions | 3 |
| 3 | Certain sections of Friendly Societies Act 1991 not to apply etc | 4 |
| 4 | Inconsistency between this Act and other Acts | 5 |
| 4A | Appointment of administrator of Society. | 5 |
| 5 | Administrator to collect property of Society | 5 |
| 6 | All contributions by investors taken to have been deposited into a common fund. | 5 |
| 7 | Powers of administrator | 6 |
| 8 | Additional power of administrator in relation to amounts lent by Society | 7 |
| 9 | Application of moneys | 8 |
| 10 | Protection of administrator etc | 8 |
| 11 | Administrator to advertise before applying moneys | 8 |
| 12 | Things that must be in the advertisement | 8 |
| 13 | Administrator may write to known claimants | 9 |
| 14 | Claims not received by specified day | 9 |
| 15 | Amounts confirmed with administrator during administration taken to be claims | 10 |
| 16 | Administrator to consider claims | 10 |
| 17 | Administrator to decide claims | 11 |
| 18 | Administrator to notify claimants | 12 |
| 19 | Administrator to pay expenses and creditors | 12 |
| 20 | Administrator to distribute investors' moneys to investors who have made proven claims | 12 |
| 21 | Payment of claimant in foreign country | 13 |
| 22 | Acceptance of claim initially rejected or not accepted in full | 13 |

Contents

| 23 | Moneys received by investor from third party | 14 |
|----|--|----|
| 24 | Further moneys available for distribution | 14 |
| 25 | Administrator's decision final | 15 |
| 26 | Regulations | 15 |
| 27 | Transitional provisions | 15 |
| 28 | Continued application of repealed Friendly Societies Act 1991 | 17 |
| 29 | Society not a continuing society | 17 |
| 30 | Administrator must give Minister a report about the | |
| | administration of the society | 17 |
| 31 | Dissolution of society | 18 |
| 32 | Ending of society's administration and cancellation of society's | |
| | registration | 18 |

Endnotes

| 1 | Index to endnotes | 20 |
|---|---------------------------------------|----|
| 2 | Date to which amendments incorporated | 20 |
| 3 | Кеу | 21 |
| 4 | Table of reprints | 21 |
| 5 | List of legislation | 21 |
| 6 | List of annotations | 22 |

Family Security Friendly Society (Distribution of Moneys) Act 1991

[as amended by all amendments that commenced on or before 1 October 1999]

An Act about the Family Security Friendly Society

1 Short title

This Act may be cited as the *Family Security Friendly Society* (*Distribution of Moneys*) Act 1991.

2 Definitions

In this Act—

administrator means the person appointed under section 4A(1) to be the administrator of the Society.

available evidence means the matters mentioned in section 16(2).

creditor means a creditor of the Society but does not include an investor whose only claim against the Society is in relation to contributions made by the investor to a fund of the Society.

investor means a person who contributed money to the Society for investment in a fund of the Society and whether or not the person became, at law, a member of the Society, and whether or not the fund was lawfully created.

investors' moneys means the amounts that are available to the administrator, from time to time, for distribution to the investors under section 9(d), after the administrator has applied the Society's moneys in the order required by section 9(a), (b) and (c), or has made adequate provision for the payment of those moneys.

property has the meaning assigned by the regulations as provided for in section 13.9(2) of the *Friendly Societies Act* 1991.

proven claim means a claim that the administrator considers proven under section 17.

QOFS means the Queensland Office of Financial Supervision established under the *Queensland Office of Financial Supervision Act 1992*.

registrar means-

- (a) before the transfer date—QOFS; and
- (b) on and after the transfer date—the chief executive.

regulations means the *Friendly Societies* (Duties and Functions of Registrar) Regulation 1991.

reporting period means the period starting on 15 January 1991 and ending at the end of the day section 30 starts to apply.

Society means the Family Security Friendly Society.

transfer date means the date that, under the *Financial Sector Reform (Amendments and Transitional Provisions) Act (No. 1) 1999* (Cwlth), section 3(16), is specified as the transfer date for the purposes of that Act.

3 Certain sections of Friendly Societies Act 1991 not to apply etc.

- (1) It is declared that—
 - (a) sections 13.4(1)(c) and (f) and 13.8 of the *Friendly Societies Act 1991* do not apply, and have never applied, to the Society; and
 - (b) the regulations have applied to the Society from 1 August 1991, and continue to apply to the Society, subject to this Act.
- (2) Despite subsection (1)(a), the Governor in Council may, by regulation, fix a day from which a provision mentioned in that subsection is to apply to the Society.

[s 4]

(3) If the Governor in Council fixes a day under subsection (2) from which both of the provisions mentioned in subsection (1)(a) apply to the Society, the regulations cease to apply to the Society from that day.

4 Inconsistency between this Act and other Acts

This Act governs the duties and responsibilities of the administrator and, except where a contrary intention appears, if there is an inconsistency between this Act and any other Act or law, this Act prevails.

4A Appointment of administrator of Society

- (1) The Minister may, by Gazette notice, appoint a person to be the administrator of the Society.
- (2) A person who becomes the administrator is taken to be an administrator under the *Friendly Societies Act 1991* and, subject to this Act and the regulations, must perform the same functions and may exercise the same powers as an administrator appointed under section 9.1 of that Act.

5 Administrator to collect property of Society

It is the duty of the administrator to collect the property of the Society vested in the Registrar as trustee under the regulations and to convert the property into money, in the time and way that the administrator alone, considers is in the best interests of investors and creditors of the Society.

6 All contributions by investors taken to have been deposited into a common fund

All amounts contributed by investors to the Society, irrespective of-

- (a) the fund on account of which they were received by or on behalf of the Society; or
- (b) whether or not the fund mentioned in paragraph (a) was lawfully created; or

[s 7]

(c) when the moneys were contributed;

are taken to have been deposited into a common fund of the Society and (except to the extent that those amounts have been redeemed by the Society before 15 January 1991) available for distribution to creditors and investors under this Act.

7 Powers of administrator

Subject to section 5, the administrator may—

- (a) make any compromise or arrangement with creditors, and persons claiming to be creditors or having or alleging that they have claims (present or future, certain or contingent, ascertained or sounding only in damages), against the Registrar as trustee of the Society; and
- (b) compromise any debts, liabilities capable of resulting in debts and claims (present or future, certain or contingent, ascertained or sounding only in damages) subsisting or supposed to subsist between the Registrar as trustee of the Society and a debtor or person apprehending liability to the Society, and all questions in any way relating to or affecting the property or the duties of the administrator under this Act, on such terms as are agreed, and take any security for the discharge of, and give a complete discharge in respect of, the debt, liability or claim; and
- (c) bring, defend, continue or discontinue any legal proceeding in the name of the Registrar as trustee of the Society; and
- (d) appoint solicitors; and
- (e) sell or otherwise dispose of, in any way, all or any part of the property of the Society; and
- (f) do acts and execute deeds, receipts and other documents in the name of the Society; and
- (g) subject to the *Bankruptcy Act 1966* (Cwlth), prove in the bankruptcy of a debtor of the Society or under any deed executed under that Act; and

- (h) draw, accept, make and endorse any bill of exchange or promissory note in the name of the Society; and
- (i) appoint agents; and
- (j) do anything else that is necessary or incidental to the performance of the administrator's duties under this Act.

8 Additional power of administrator in relation to amounts lent by Society

- (1) Despite any provision of a loan agreement, mortgage or other security between the Society and a borrower to whom the Society has lent money that has not been fully repaid, if the administrator alone considers it to be in the best interests of the investors and creditors of the Society, the administrator may by a written notice served on the borrower, require the borrower to repay the principal of the loan in full by repaying the amount specified in the notice (together with interest under the loan agreement, mortgage or other security to the day of repayment of the principal) within 90 days of service of the notice.
- (2) If a borrower fails to comply with a notice under subsection (1)—
 - (a) the borrower is taken to be in default under the loan agreement, mortgage or other security; and
 - (b) a mortgage or other security given to the Society to secure the repayment of the loan may be immediately enforced by the administrator in accordance with its terms; and
 - (c) the amount specified in the notice, or such lesser amount of principal and interest as is outstanding after any securities held by the Society to secure the loan have been enforced—
 - (i) is a debt due to the Society by the borrower; and
 - (ii) may be sued for and recovered by the administrator in a court having jurisdiction for the recovery of debts up to the amount concerned.

[s 9]

9 Application of moneys

The moneys of the Society that become available to the administrator in performing the duty imposed by section 5 must be applied by the administrator in the following order—

- (a) first, in payment of the administrator's expenses of and incidental to the conduct of the Society's affairs by the administrator;
- (b) next, in payment of the expenses of and incidental to the performance of the administrator's duty under this Act;
- (c) next, in payment of the creditors;
- (d) finally, to be distributed to the investors under this Act.

10 Protection of administrator etc.

The administrator, an officer of the public service or an agent of the administrator or an employee of that agent acting under this Act are indemnified by the State against all actions, proceedings and claims in relation to—

- (a) acts done, or omitted to be done, by any of them without negligence under this Act; and
- (b) acts done or omitted to be done by any of them in good faith and without negligence for the purpose of this Act.

11 Administrator to advertise before applying moneys

The administrator must, before applying any moneys under section 9(c) or (d), advertise at least once in—

- (a) a newspaper circulating generally in Australia; or
- (b) a newspaper published, and circulating generally, in each State or Territory where the administrator considers potential claimants may be located.

12 Things that must be in the advertisement

The advertisement must-

(a) state the existence of the moneys; and

- (b) invite claims from investors and other persons who consider that the Society owes them money; and
- (c) require a claimant to send to the administrator with the person's claim—
 - (i) any document or information in that person's possession that is proof of the claim; and
 - (ii) if the claimant is an investor—a bond certificate or receipt from the Society or other proof of moneys contributed to the funds of the Society; and
- (d) specify the day (not earlier than 2 months after the publication of the advertisement) before which a claim and proof of the claim must be received by the administrator; and
- (e) specify the place or address to where the claim and its proof is to be sent or delivered; and
- (f) contain any other information, that the administrator considers may be helpful to a potential claimant.

13 Administrator may write to known claimants

In addition to advertising under section 11, the administrator may as near in time as is practicable to the time when the advertisements are published, send letters to persons that the administrator knows to be potential claimants, addressed to them at the addresses last known to the administrator, telling them of their rights to make claims and of information and requirements associated with the making of a claim that is contained or is to be contained in an advertisement under section 12.

14 Claims not received by specified day

Claims that are not received by the administrator by the day specified under section 12 are not valid claims under this Act and are to be disregarded by the administrator.

[s 15]

15 Amounts confirmed with administrator during administration taken to be claims

If during the course of administering the Society under the regulations, the administrator has received—

- (a) written confirmation from an investor of the amount that is shown in the Society's records as the amount that the investor has deposited with the Society; or
- (b) a claim from a creditor of the Society that is accompanied by proof of the claim that is mentioned in section 12(c);

then despite section 12—

- (c) the investor and the creditor need not make a claim under section 12; and
- (d) the amount that is—
 - (i) confirmed by the investor; or
 - (ii) claimed by the creditor;

is taken by the administrator to be an amount claimed under this Act; and

- (e) the administrator must send a letter to—
 - (i) the investor; and
 - (ii) the creditor;

at the address last known to the administrator advising the investor and creditor of the amount taken as a claim under this section.

16 Administrator to consider claims

- (1) All claims received by the administrator (other than claims that under section 14 are not valid claims), must be considered by the administrator who must make a decision in relation to each claim.
- (2) In making a decision under subsection (1), the administrator must have regard to—

- (a) the proof mentioned in section 12(c) sent with the claim; and
- (b) documents and information held by the administrator; and
- (c) any other material and information available to the administrator that the administrator considers to be relevant.

17 Administrator to decide claims

- (1) Subject to section 16, the administrator must decide which of those claims under this Act that the administrator considers, on the available evidence, proven to the satisfaction of the administrator and the amounts of those claims.
- (2) The administrator must deduct the following amounts from the amount of a claim made by an investor—
 - (a) the amount of any partial redemption of a benefit; and
 - (b) the amount of any annuity payment;

paid out to the investor by the Society before 15 January 1991 unless the investor has already deducted those amounts in making the claim.

- (3) In deciding the amount of each claim the administrator must disregard the amount of—
 - (a) a bonus; or
 - (b) agent's commission; or
 - (c) any similar adjustment;

that has been added to or deducted from an investor's contribution by the Society, where the amount mentioned in paragraph (a), (b) or (c) has not been paid out to the investor, and the amount of each claim is to be decided as if none of the amounts mentioned in those paragraphs had ever been added to or deducted from the amount of the contribution.

(4) The administrator must determine the percentage that the amount of each investor's proven claim represents of the total amount of all investors' proven claims.

[s 18]

18 Administrator to notify claimants

The administrator must give written notice to each claimant, stating—

- (a) that the administrator has—
 - (i) rejected the claimant's claim and the reasons for its rejection; or
 - (ii) accepted the claimant's claims as proven, either in whole or to the extent specified in the notice, and, if accepted in part only, the reasons for its partial non-acceptance; and
- (b) if the claimant is an investor whose claim has been accepted either in whole or part—
 - (i) the total amount of all investors' proven claims; and
 - (ii) the percentage determined under section 17(4) in relation to the investor.

19 Administrator to pay expenses and creditors

- (1) The administrator must begin to apply the moneys available to the administrator in performing the duty imposed under section 5, as soon as they are available, to pay the administration expenses under section 9(a) and (b) and next to pay creditors under section 9(c).
- (2) It is sufficient compliance with subsection (1) if the administrator makes adequate provision for the payment of the moneys mentioned in that subsection and then pays those moneys from time to time as the administrator determines.

20 Administrator to distribute investors' moneys to investors who have made proven claims

- (1) When the administrator has made—
 - (a) the payments provided for under section 19(1); or
 - (b) adequate provision for those payments under section 19(2);

the administrator must then begin to distribute the investors' moneys to the investors who have made proven claims.

- (2) The administrator may make—
 - (a) an initial distribution; and
 - (b) as many interim distributions;

before making a final distribution, as the administrator determines.

(3) At each distribution made by the administrator, an investor who has made a proven claim is to receive the investor's percentage determined or last determined under section 17(4) of the investors' moneys then being distributed.

21 Payment of claimant in foreign country

The money value of a proven claim is to be determined in Australian currency, and in the case of payment to a claimant in a foreign country, is to be based on the exchange rate applicable to the currency of the country where the payment is to be made as at the day the payment is to be made.

22 Acceptance of claim initially rejected or not accepted in full

- (1) If a claim that, in the first instance, is rejected or not accepted in full by the administrator is later accepted by the administrator as being proven, the administrator must pay that claim, so far as available moneys will allow, to the same extent as like proven claims have been paid by the administrator, before any further payments (other than payments mentioned in section 9(a) and (b)) are made under this Act.
- (2) After payment of a claim under subsection (1), the administrator must treat the claim in a similar way to like proven claims under this Act.
- (3) If the claim that is accepted under subsection (1) is a claim by an investor in relation to a contribution to the Society for investment in one of its funds, the administrator must again

work out the percentage under section 17(4) to take account of the additional proven claim and must give another notice to each claimant under section 18(b) either before or with the next distribution to investors under section 20.

23 Moneys received by investor from third party

If an investor, who makes or has made a claim under this Act, receives or has received any moneys from a person (other than the administrator), before or after the commencement of this Act because of a demand or proceeding made or brought by the investor against the person arising out of or in relation to a contribution of money to the Society by the investor to which the investor's claim under this Act relates, the investor must notify the administrator in writing—

- (a) if the moneys were received before the commencement of this Act—within 1 month of the commencement; or
- (b) if the moneys were received after the commencement of this Act—within 1 month of the receipt of the moneys;

of the following details—

- (c) the amount of the moneys received;
- (d) when they were received;
- (e) the claim under this Act to which they relate.

24 Further moneys available for distribution

- (1) Subject to subsection (2), moneys coming into the hands of the administrator under this Act after the final distribution of the investors' moneys are to be distributed under this Act.
- (2) If, having regard to the amount of moneys mentioned in subsection (1) and the expenses of administering those moneys under this Act, the administrator believes that the moneys would be used up in administration expenses to such an extent that a distribution under the relevant provisions of this Act would not be warranted, the administrator may request the Governor in Council for directions in relation to the distribution of the moneys.

[s 25]

- (3) Despite any other provision of this Act, the Governor in Council may, on receipt of a request under subsection (2), by regulation, give such directions to the administrator relating to the distribution of the moneys as the Governor in Council considers are just and equitable.
- (4) The administrator is to distribute the moneys under the direction.

25 Administrator's decision final

The administrator's decision under section 17 is final and is not subject to judicial, administrative or any other form of review whatever.

26 Regulations

The Governor in Council may make regulations under this Act.

27 Transitional provisions

- (1) On the appointment of a person under section 4A(1), the Registrar ceases to be the administrator and the person appointed becomes the administrator.
- (2) A reference in this Act, and the regulations in their application to the Society, to—
 - (a) the Registrar as administrator of the Society—is taken to be a reference to the administrator; and
 - (b) the Registrar as trustee of the Society—is taken to be a reference to the administrator as trustee of the Society.

Examples of references to the Registrar as administrator taken to be references to the administrator—

Sections 4.04, 4.05, 4.06, 4.07 and 5.01 of the regulations.

Examples of references to the Registrar as trustee taken to be references to the administrator as trustee—

Sections 5 and 7 of the Act and section 4.04(3) of the regulations.

(3) A reference in this Act, and the regulations in their application to the Society, to the Registrar other than as administrator or trustee of the Society continues to be a reference to the Registrar.

Examples of references to the Registrar other than as administrator or trustee—

Parts 2 and 3, Part 4 Division 1, section 5.02 and Part 6 of the regulations.

- (4) Sections 4.02 and 4.03 of the regulations cease to apply to the Society but section 4.04(1) of the regulations continues to have effect.
- (5) From the commencement of this section—
 - (a) all property and liabilities of the Registrar as administrator or trustee of the Society become the property and liabilities of the administrator; and
 - (b) the administrator is substituted for the Registrar as administrator or trustee of the Society in all contracts to which the Registrar as administrator or trustee is a party; and
 - (c) the administrator is substituted for the Registrar as administrator or trustee of the Society in all existing and pending proceedings to which the Registrar as administrator or trustee is a party.
- (6) The Registrar of Titles and all other persons responsible for keeping registers about dealings with property must, if asked by the administrator, make in the registers all endorsements necessary to record the vesting of property in the administrator under this section.
- (7) The administrator is sufficiently described in a document by use of the title Administrator of the Family Security Friendly Society.
- (8) A request under subsection (6) is not liable to stamp duty and no fees or charges are payable for the request.
- (9) Stamp duty is not otherwise payable because of the operation of this section.

[s 28]

28 Continued application of repealed Friendly Societies Act 1991

- (1) This section applies despite the repeal of the *Friendly* Societies Act 1991.
- (2) To the extent that it is necessary or convenient, the *Friendly Societies Act 1991* and the regulations continue to apply for the purposes of this Act.
- (3) Despite subsection (2), the provisions of the *Friendly Societies Act 1991* about winding-up and dissolution do not apply.
- (4) For the application mentioned in subsection (2), on and after the transfer date, a reference in the *Friendly Societies Act 1991* and the regulations to the registrar is taken to be a reference to the chief executive.

29 Society not a continuing society

The Society is not a continuing society under the *Friendly Societies (Queensland) Act 1997* or the Friendly Societies (Queensland) Code.

30 Administrator must give Minister a report about the administration of the society

- (1) This section applies if the society's administrator—
 - (a) has performed the administrator's duty under section 5; and
 - (b) has paid administration expenses and creditors under section 19; and
 - (c) has made a final distribution to investors under section 20.
- (2) The administrator must give the Minister a report about the administration within 30 days after this section applies.
- (3) The report must—
 - (a) be in writing and signed by the administrator; and
 - (b) contain a final account of-

| [s 31] | | | |
|--------|----------|--------|--|
| | | (i) | the property collected and converted into money by the administrator under section 5 during the reporting period; and |
| | | (ii) | the money paid under section 19, and distributed under section 20, during the reporting period; and |
| | (c) | cont | ain a statement by the administrator that— |
| | | (i) | on the day the administrator signs the report, the information in it is, to the best of the administrator's knowledge and belief, true; and |
| | | (ii) | the administrator has performed the administrator's duty under section 5; and |
| | | (iii) | the administrator has paid administration expenses and creditors under section 19; and |
| | | (iv) | the administrator has made a final distribution to investors under section 20; and |
| | | (v) | the final account mentioned in paragraph (b) contains a full and true account of the property collected and converted into money, and the money paid and distributed, during the reporting period; and |
| | (d) | | ain the further information, or be accompanied by documents, directed by the Minister. |
| 31 C | Dissolut | tion o | of society |
| (1 | , | | s practicable after receiving the report, the Minister gazette notice, dissolve the society. |

(2) The society is dissolved on the day stated in the notice.

32 Ending of society's administration and cancellation of society's registration

On the dissolution of the society—

(a) the administrator's appointment under section 4A ends; and

[s 32]

- (b) the administration of the society ends; and
- (c) the society's registration is taken to have been cancelled under the *Friendly Societies Act 1991*, section 10.5.

Endnotes

Endnotes

1 Index to endnotes

| | Pag | e |
|---|---------------------------------------|---|
| 2 | Date to which amendments incorporated | 0 |
| 3 | Key | 1 |
| 4 | Table of reprints | 1 |
| 5 | List of legislation | 1 |
| 6 | List of annotations | 2 |

2 Date to which amendments incorporated

This is the reprint date mentioned in the Reprints Act 1992, section 5(c). Accordingly, this reprint includes all amendments that commenced operation on or before 1 October 1999. Future amendments of the Family Security Friendly Society (Distribution of Moneys) Act 1991 may be made in accordance with this reprint under the Reprints Act 1992, section 49.

3 Key

Key to abbreviations in list of legislation and annotations

| Key | | Explanation | Кеу | | Explanation |
|--|-------------|--|---|---|---|
| AIA amd ch def div exp gaz hdg ins lap notfd num o in c om orig p para | | Acts Interpretation Act 1954 amended amendment chapter definition division expires/expired gazette heading inserted lapsed notified numbered order in council omitted original page paragraph | (prev) proc prov pt pubd R[X] RA reloc renum rep (retro) rv s sch sdiv SIA SIR SIR SL | | previously proclamation provision part published Reprint No. [X] Reprints Act 1992 relocated renumbered repealed retrospectively revised edition section schedule subdivision Statutory Instruments Act 1992 Statutory Instruments Regulation 2002 subordinate legislation |
| prec pres prev | = = = | preceding present previous | sub unnum | = | substituted unnumbered |
| PIC | _ | Provious | | | |

4 Table of reprints

Reprints are issued for both future and past effective dates. For the most up-to-date table of reprints, see the reprint with the latest effective date.

If a reprint number includes a letter of the alphabet, the reprint was released in unauthorised, electronic form only.

| Reprint No. | Amendments to | Effective | Reprint date |
|----------------|-----------------|-------------------|------------------|
| 1 | none | 11 December 1991 | 1 June 1992 |
| 2 | 1994 Act No. 48 | 14 September 1994 | 20 October 1994 |
| 2A | 1997 Act No. 35 | 1 October 1997 | 25 November 1997 |
| 2B | 1999 Act No. 27 | 16 June 1999 | 1 October 1999 |

5 List of legislation

Family Security Friendly Society (Distribution of Moneys) Act 1991 No. 89

date of assent 11 December 1991 commenced on date of assent

amending legislation-

Endnotes

| date of | nd Other Legislation Amendment Act 1994 No. 48 pts 1–2 of assent 14 September 1994 nenced on date of assent |
|--------------------|---|
| date o ss 1–2 | ocieties (Queensland) Act 1997 No. 35 ss 1–2, 38 sch of assent 18 July 1997 2 commenced on date of assent uning provisions commenced 1 October 1997 (1997 SL No. 307) |
| _ | Sector Reform (Queensland) Act 1999 No. 27 ss 1-2(1), (3)-(4), 76 sch |
| | of assent 16 June 1999 nenced on date of assent |
| 6 | List of annotations |
| Title | sub 1994 No. 48 s 4 |
| Definitions s 2 | def " administrator " sub 1994 No. 48 s 5 def " QOFS " ins 1994 No. 48 s 5 def " registrar " ins 1994 No. 48 s 5 sub 1999 No. 27 s 76 sch 1 pt 1 def " reporting period " ins 1999 No. 27 s 76 sch 1 pt 1 def " transfer date " ins 1999 No. 27 s 76 sch 1 pt 1 |
| Certain see s 3 | ctions of Friendly Societies Act 1991 not to apply etc. amd 1994 No. 48 s 6 |
| Appointme s 4A | ent of administrator of Society ins 1994 No. 48 s 7 amd 1999 No. 27 s 76 sch 1 pt 1 |
| Powers of a s 7 | administrator amd 1994 No. 48 s 8 |
| Application s 9 | n of moneys amd 1994 No. 48 s 9 |
| Further mass 24 | oneys available for distribution amd 1994 No. 48 s 10 |
| Regulation s 26 | sub 1994 No. 48 s 11 |
| Transition s 27 | al provisions sub 1994 No. 48 s 11 |

1 pt

Endnotes

Continued application of repealed Friendly Societies Act 1991

s 28 prev s 28 ins 1994 No. 48 s 11 exp 14 September 1995 (see s 28(3)) pres s 28 ins 1997 No. 35 s 38 sch amd 1999 No. 27 s 76 sch 1 pt 1

Society not a continuing society

s 29 ins 1997 No. 35 s 38 sch

Administrator must give Minister a report about the administration of the society a_{10}^{20} in a 1000 No. 27 a 76 sole 1 at 1

s 30 ins 1999 No. 27 s 76 sch 1 pt 1

Dissolution of society

s 31 ins 1999 No. 27 s 76 sch 1 pt 1

Ending of society's administration and cancellation of society's registration

s 32 ins 1999 No. 27 s 76 sch 1 pt 1

© State of Queensland 2010